095 Wapp

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SD J WHITE

WAY 8 1992

CLERK SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerk

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA,

Defendant, Petitioner,

vs.

Case No. 91-01332

TOM F. SAWYER,

Plaintiff, Respondent.

PETITIONER'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

SUZANNE T. DALY
Florida Bar No. 772887
Assistant County Attorney
PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA
315 Court Street
Clearwater, Florida 34616
(813) 462-3354
Attorney for PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent, TOM F. SAWYER, was indicted for first degree murder and sexual battery by a Pinellas County Grand Jury. Subsequently, the State Nolle Prosequi both charges. As a discharged criminal defendant, the Respondent submitted a trial court order certifying the payment of certain investigative expenses to the Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners for reimbursement pursuant to Chapter 939, Fla. Stat. (1989); the Board denied payment. The Respondent filed suit in the Circuit Court to recover the investigative costs.

The parties submitted Cross-Motions for Summary Judgment with a stipulated Statement of Facts. The sole issue before the trial court was whether, as a matter of law, the investigative expenses of the Respondent were included within the scope of taxable costs under Section 939.06, Fla. Stat. (1989). The trial court denied Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, granted Petitioner's Motion for Summary Judgment and held that the reasonably incurred and paid investigative expenses of a non-indigent discharged defendant are not taxable costs subject to reimbursement by the County.

An appeal was taken to the Second District Court of Appeal to review the trial court's order denying Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, and on March 20, 1992, the District Court reversed the order of the trial court. The District Court held that investigative costs are taxable costs within the meaning of Section 939.06.

Petitioner's Motion for Clarification was denied on April 10, 1992 and the Petitioner's Notice to Invoke the Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court was timely filed on May 6, 1992.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In this case, the District Court of Appeal held that a discharged defendant's reasonable and necessary investigative costs are taxable costs under Section 939.06, Fla. Stat. (1989). The court certified that its holding is in conflict with Benitez v. State, 350 So.2d 1100 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), cert. denied, 359 So.2d 1211 (Fla. 1978) and Osceola County v. Otte, 530 So.2d 478 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988). In the cases cited, the district courts interpreted Section 939.06 to exclude investigative costs from the meaning of taxable costs. The Petitioner asserts that the decision of the District Court expressly and directly conflicts with previous decisions of the Third and Fifth District Courts of Appeal.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1980), this Court may exercise its discretionary jurisdiction where an appellate decision expressly and directly conflicts with the decision from another Florida appellate court. That conflict must be express and contained within the written rule announced by the majority decision. Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980); Dodi Publishing Co. v. Editorial America, S.A., 385 So.2d 1369 (Fla. 1980).

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW

The District Court of Appeal interpreted Section 939.06, Fla. Stat. (1989) to include investigative costs within the meaning of taxable costs. The decision of the District Court conflicts with the decisions of two other Appellate Courts holding that investigative costs are not taxable costs under Section 939.06.

In <u>Benitez v. State</u>, 350 So.2d 1100, 1101 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), cert. denied, 359 So.2d 1211 (Fla. 1978), the Third District held as a matter of law that investigative costs were not recoverable taxable costs under Section 939.06. In <u>Osceola County v. Otte</u>, 530 So.2d 478 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988), the Fifth District ruled that investigative fees and expenses did not qualify as taxable costs under Section 939.06. In the present decision, the Second District explicitly holds that investigative costs are taxable costs within the meaning of Section 939.06. The court goes on to state:

"We certify that our holding is in conflict with Benitez and Osceola County."

The Petitioner asserts that the rule announced by the District Court directly and expressly conflicts with the decisions of other Florida district courts of appeal on the same question of law and is certified as a conflict by the District Court.

The Petitioner respectfully submits that this Court should grant discretionary review and resolve the conflict by reversing the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal.

CONCLUSION

The present decision is in direct conflict with the decision of Florida's other district courts of appeal. This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below. This Court should exercise its discretion and review the case on the merits.