12	
	MAY 22 1992
	CLERK, SUPREME OOURT
	By-Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 79,839 DCA CASE NO. 91-01332

A

TOM F. SAWYER,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL ANSWER BRIEF

On Review from the District Court of Appeal, Second District State of Florida

> SÓNDRA GOLDENFARB Florida Bar No. 160108 2454 McMullen Booth Road Suite 501-A Clearwater, Florida 34619 (813) 726-4781 Attorney for the Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts as submitted except to take issue with Petitioner's characterization of the Second District Court of Appeals' holding below (Petitioner's Brief, page 1). The District Court specifically held that the 1987 amendment to Section 939.01, Florida Statutes, which provides that "investigative costs" are included in the costs properly taxable against a <u>convicted</u> criminal defendant, mandates a similar inclusion of investigative costs in Section 939.06, Florida Statutes, which provides for reimbursement of costs to a <u>discharged or acquitted</u> criminal defendant.

1

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no "express [or] direct conflict" between this case and any other district court decision, because this case presented a matter of first impression, i.e., does the 1987 statutory amendment to Chapter 939, Florida Statutes, require mutuality and reciprocity in the award of investigative costs to the successful party litigant in a criminal proceeding? Neither of the cases which allegedly creates jurisdictional conflict deals with the effect of the statutory amendment. Therefore, there being a dispositive distinguishing "fact," there is no conflict.

ARGUMENT

THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION, WHICH RELIES ON A 1987 STATUTORY AMENDMENT, DOES NOT "EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT" WITH OTHER DISTRICT COURT OPINIONS WHICH EFFECTIVELY PRE-DATED THE AMENDMENT.

Over thirty years ago, in reflecting on its "conflict" jurisdiction, this Court correctly perceived its role in connection with discretionary review of district court opinions as being designed to "stabilize the law by a review of decisions which form <u>patently irreconcilable</u> precedents." <u>Florida Power &</u> <u>Light Co. v. Bell</u>, 113 So.2d 697 (Fla. 1959)(e.s.). In the present case, the opinion below is completely reconcilable with the cases cited by Petitioner as creating conflict, <u>Benitez v.</u> <u>State</u>, 350 So.2d 1100 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), <u>cert. denied</u>, 359 So.2d 1211 (Fla. 1978) and <u>Osceola County v. Otte</u>, 530 So.2d 478 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988).

<u>Benitez</u> preceded by ten years the statutory amendment on which the Second District has here premised its decision. In <u>Osceola County</u>, decided in 1988, the Fifth District was apparently never asked to consider the effect of the 1987 amendment. Neither case, therefore, can be said to be factually "on all fours" with the case here under discussion.

Although the Second District acknowledged a superficial

3

"conflict," the opinion itself goes on to distinguish <u>Benitez</u> and <u>Osceola County</u> from the pending case because of the dispositive effect of the amendment to the criminal costs statute in 1987, Chapter 939, Florida Statutes (1989). See page 4 of Opinion (Appendix).

In short, where no other district court of appeals in Florida has ruled as to the impact of the 1987 statutory amendment on pre-existing case law, there is no "conflict" on which to base this Court's jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

There being no "express and direct conflict" between the decision below and any other district court of appeals decision, this Court has no jurisdiction to review the decision.